

REGULAR GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES

Wednesday, June 15, 2022 Video and Telephone Conference Call

Members Present:

At Roll Call: Ruth Forney, Mike Brown, Anthony Lofton, Gerald Hase, Don O'Conner After meeting started: Brandon Wirth, Tracee Stacy, Sandy Whaley

Members Absent: Katrina Morrow

Staff Present:

Jerry Huber, Bela Matyas, Dona Weissenfels, Michele Leary, Toya Adams, Noelle Soto, Anna Mae Gonzales-Smith, Rebecca Cronk, Nina Delmendo, Lavona Hamilton, Cheryl Esters, Clarisa Sudarma, Niccore Tyler, Julie Barga, Cynthia Coutee, Kathryn Power-PHC, and Patricia Zuñiga.

- 1) Call to Order 12:04 p.m.
 - a) Welcome
 - b) Roll Call

2) Update by Deputy County Counsel

a) At the April 20, 2022, meeting, the Board discussed a desire to have a hybrid meeting option in June 2022. At the May 18, 2022, meeting, a majority of the Board voted to make AB 361 findings to allow teleconferencing without compliance with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3). The prior findings expire the earlier of June 20, 2022, or such time the Board makes subsequent AB 361 findings. At the May 18, 2022, meeting, the Board discussed a desire to have a hybrid meeting option in June 2022, but due to the recent surge of COVID-19 in Solano County, and as recommended by the Solano County Health Officer, the June 15, 2022, meeting should not be held as a hybrid meeting after all, and should be held as a virtual meeting, with consideration of the safety of the Board Members and meeting participants.

County Counsel recommends the Board consider making AB 361 findings before each meeting.

i) **ACTION ITEM:** The Board will consider making the findings as noted in Agenda item 2) a) i), ii), iii), iv), v), vi), vii), and viii), due to the surge of COVID-19 in Solano County, and as recommended by the Solano County Health Officer and FHS Clinic Operations officer, whether it may pose imminent danger, to the Board Members to meet in person, and if the Board makes subsequent findings to pose imminent danger, thus Board may continue to meet virtual.

Motion: To accept and approve the findings of the Governor's Bill AB 361 and move forward to

meet via teleconference.

Motion by: Don O'Conner and seconded by Gerald Hase

Discussion: None.

Ayes: Ruth Forney, Mike Brown, Anthony Lofton, Gerald Hase, and Don O'Conner



Nays: None.

Abstain: None.

Motion Carried – The Board moved forward with a virtual meeting.

3) Approval of June 15, 2022, Agenda

Motion: To approve the June 15, 2022, Agenda

Motion by: Mike Brown and seconded by Don O'Conner

Discussion: None

Ayes: Ruth Forney, Mike Brown, Anthony Lofton, Gerald Hase, and Don O'Conner

Nays: None

Abstain: None

Motion Carried

4) Approval of the May 18, 2022, Minutes

Motion: To approve the April 20, 2022, Minutes

Motion by: Don O'Conner and seconded by Mike Brown

Discussion: None

Ayes: Ruth Forney, Mike Brown, Anthony Lofton, Gerald Hase, and Don O'Conner

Nays: None

Abstain: None

Motion Carried

5) Public Comment

- Kathryn Power with Partner HealthPlan of California (PHC), mentioned that she enjoyed Dona's updates, because they were good operational information.
- Chair Ruth Forney officially introduced the new Board Member, Don O'Conner and welcomed him to the Community Healthcare Board. She mentioned that he has served on the Board in the past and is involved with outreach to the homeless.

6) Project Director/Clinic Operations Officer Report

- a) Health Center Operations Update Dona Weissenfels
 - i) Health Center Activities, Internal & External Update
 - Dona reminded everyone that even though contracts, data and processes are discussed at these meetings, she reminded everyone that the North Star of Family



Health Services (FHS) is patient care. We see patients and that is why the health clinics exist.

- Dona mentioned good news! In addition to Representative Garamendi, Senator Padilla has also requested the Congressional earmark for one million dollars (\$1,000,000.00) to implement a new Electronic Health Records (EHR) system for Solano County, which added more support for the request. She hadn't heard any updates yet and stated as soon as she received any information, she would keep the Board updated.
- Dona said they went through three (3) rounds of OCHIN EPIC Electronic Health Record (EHR) pricing, and final estimates are pending from Fiscal, for the cost of implementation and maintenance. Once it is ready, they will present it to Solano County to get approval to move ahead.
- Dona announced that on June 14, 2022, the Board of Supervisors (BOS), approved the \$12,500.00 donation, from the Solano County Association of Realtors Foundation, to support the Dental Mobile Clinic, in supporting pediatric dental care for children in the community. She thought the check would be presented in July or August and hoped the check would be presented in August, because August 7-13, 2022, is Community Health Center Week.
- Dona said that she talked with Chair Ruth Forney, about The National Community
 Health Center Week and mentioned an online Hip-Hop webinar. She said if anyone
 was interested in the presentation, to contact her for the link. They are discussing
 various activities in support of National Community Health Center Week, to raise
 awareness.
- She stated at the last meeting, the Board approved a grant request for additional supplemental funding, \$60,000.00 for UDS improvements, and that it was submitted on time, thanks to Noelle Soto.
- Dona mentioned two important contracts. One was the Touro University of California contract, effective July 1, 2022, and was renewed for three (3) years. With the new contract it is expanded to include Physician Assistants (PAs), Nurse Practitioners (NPs), and Pharmacists. The other was the Greg Facktor contract. They are consultants in the FQHCs. They will be providing direction and support for the Needs Assessments, the Operations Site Visit (OSV) preparation and the OSV audit in 2023. They will be working with the Board Members and the FHS staff.
- Dona stated internally, thanked all the Board Members and stakeholders, who
 attended the FHS Town Hall All Staff Meeting on June 9, 2022. Their support was
 appreciated by the FHS staff, and after the meeting, staff shared their appreciation of
 Board Member attendance. The next Town Hall is scheduled in December and the
 hope is to meet in person.

ii) Operational Dashboards

- Dona didn't provide metrics this month as in the past and mentioned they are
 reworking the operational metrics and hope to present an improved version of the
 metrics in the future and include Call Centers, Referrals, Revenue Cycle and Front Desk
 metrics. The dashboards would also include analysis data, but currently these are
 works in progress. These might be presented possibly at the next meeting or in August.
- Dona announced that although a new EHR is being pursued, they were working on improvements of the current EHR, NextGen. Two (2) weekends ago, there was a QA work party, to work on the move of the servers up to the Cloud. She mentioned that after they moved the servers up to the Cloud, they would be doing major upgrades, and the hope was to move to implement a patient portal.



- b) Staffing Update Toya Adams
 - i) Toya mentioned that there were no new staff onboarded since the last meeting.
 - ii) She mentioned there were two (2) Clinic Registered Nurses in background. They would be holding interviews on June 16th for a 0.5 part time Clinic Registered Nurse.
 - iii) Toya mentioned they were recruiting for a Dentist Manager, and the first round of interviews were scheduled on June 24th.

7) Operations Committee Update Reports

- a) Hiring Credentialing Update Niccore Tyler
 - i) Credentialing Niccore mentioned that the Credentialing Team were very busy, with two (2) Clinic RNs, one (1) Clinic RN Senior, pending one (1) application for a Touro OMM for PHC review, scheduled July 13, 2022, and close to completing credentialing for a Touro Pharmacist. She mentioned there were three (3) Touro providers expected in November 2022.
 - ii) Recredentialing She mentioned two (2) were approved by PHC (Touro Dr. Wagner and NP Hanna Crowl). There is one (1) Touro provider pending review by PHC and two (2) are in the process of re-credentialing.
 - iii) Sanction Screening She stated they ran sanction screenings on all 217, FHS Clinic staff and there were no sanctions.
- b) Review Strategic Plan (3-Year Cycle) Dona Weissenfels
 - Dona reminded the whole document would be reviewed and updated with the help of Greg Facktor.
- c) Request for QI/QA Evaluation and QI/QA Plan Presentation to be deferred until the September 21, 2022, Meeting Dr. Michele Leary
 - Dr. Leary explained to the Board that because the QA/QI relied heavily on data received by outside sources and other entities, it was requested the topic be deferred until the September meeting.
 - i) **ACTION ITEM**: The Board will consider approval of the deferment of the QI/QA Evaluation and QI/QA Plan Presentation, to the September 21, 2022, Meeting

Motion: The Board will consider approval of the deferment of the QI/QA Evaluation and QI/QA

Plan Presentation, to the September 21, 2022, Meeting

Motion by: Don O'Conner and seconded by Tracee Stacy

Discussion: None

Ayes: Ruth Forney, Mike Brown, Anthony Lofton, Gerald Hase, Don O'Conner, Tracee Stacy, and

Brandon Wirth

Nays: None

Abstain: None

Motion Carried.



8) Unfinished Business

- a) Credentialing Privileging Policy and Procedure Update Dona Weissenfels and Cheryl Esters
 - There was no update.
- b) HIPS/HIPAA Training This training will be scheduled to be presented to the Board, after new members are added to the Board.
- c) Confidentiality Form This form will be presented and distributed to the Board Members and must coincide with HIPAA Training.
- d) Community Healthcare Board Self-Assessment Form It was decided by the Board at the April 20, 2022, meeting to be reviewed and revised by the Board.

9) Board Member Comments

- Board Member Katrina Morrow submitted her resignation, to Chair Ruth Forney, on June 6, 2022, via email
 - i) ACTION ITEM: The Board will consider acceptance of the resignation of Board Member Katrina Morrow

Motion: The Board will consider acceptance of the resignation of Board Member Katrina

Morrow

Motion by: Anthony Lofton and seconded by Don O'Conner

Discussion: None

Ayes: Ruth Forney, Mike Brown, Anthony Lofton, Gerald Hase, Don O'Conner, Tracee Stacy, and

Brandon Wirth

Nays: None

Abstain: None

Motion Carried.

- b) Board Member Recruitment Status and Strategy
 - Chair Ruth Forney stated that with the new appointment of a new Board Member and the
 resignation of a Board Member, recruiting was still ongoing. She also stated she would
 continue to reach out for potential board members.
 - Dona mentioned that FHS staff have been reaching out to clinic patients.
 - Dr. Leary, noted that the medical assistants have been sending out letters to patients.
- c) National Association of Community Health Centers (NACHC), 2022 Community Health Institute (CHI) & Expo Conference, scheduled August 28-30, 2022, in Chicago, Illinois.
 - ACTION ITEM: The Board will consider approval of [board member(s)] to attend the NACHC 2022, CHI & Expo Conference
 - Ruth mentioned the conference and gave some insight on what she experienced in past conferences, she attended.

Motion: The Board will consider approval of Chair Ruth Forney to attend the NACHC 2022, CHI & Expo Conference



Motion by: Anthony Lofton and seconded by Gerald Hase

Discussion: There was discussion among the board members who to send and the only one

interested was Chair Ruth Forney. Also discussed was funding for travel for the event to attend in person, in Chicago, Illinois and Nina Delmendo, with Fiscal verified there was funding available. It was also recommended by the Board to also send someone

from FHS and it was decided that Dona Weissenfels would attend.

Ayes: Ruth Forney, Mike Brown, Anthony Lofton, Gerald Hase, Don O'Conner, Tracee Stacy,

Brandon Wirth and Sandy Whaley

Nays: None

Abstain: None

Motion Carried.

10) Board Member Comments

- Chair Ruth Forney mentioned National Health Centers Week August 7-13, 2022, and asked Board Members to think about suggestions to celebrate it in the community. She thought maybe there could be an open house for the public, as an example.
- Chair Ruth Forney planned to meet with Dona and Dr. Matyas as plans for the National Health Centers Week comes together, to possibly ask for donations within the community to support the celebration. She suggested we should reach out to Kaiser.

11) Parking Lot (These items are postponed, until further notice.)

- a) Compliance Training and Robert's Rules Review
- b) Health Center Marketing Campaign & Website Design

12) Next Community Healthcare Board Meeting (virtual)

DATE: July 20, 2022 TIME: 12:00 p.m.

TO JOIN Telephone Conference Call:

Dial: 1-323-457-3408, Conference ID: 446 778 066# (announce your name)

Teleconference: Contact the Clerk: 707-784-8775

13) Adjourn

Meeting was adjourned at 1:30 p.m.

Handout:

2022 CHI & Expo Conference Information